Town of Farmerville Regular Meeting October 10, 2022

The Farmerville Town Council met in regular session at Farmerville Community Center, located at 407 South Main Street, Farmerville, Louisiana, October 10, 2022. The council members present were Mayor John Crow, Alderman Robert Allen, Thomas Nation, Kerry Hill, Caroline Gatson, and Ricky Johnikin.

The roll was called and with a quorum present Mayor Crow called the meeting to order and Invocation was offered by Alderman Johnikin.

At this time a public hearing was held to hear the views and opinions from citizens concerning Ordinance No 05-22 pertaining to Smoke Free Community and Ordinance No 06-22 pertaining to declaring surplus property.

As state law requires, Town Clerk, Gay Nell Pepper, offered the public the opportunity to voice their opinion on all agenda items at this time. There were no comments.

On motion by Gatson, seconded by Johniking and unanimously approved to approve the minutes from September 12, 2022, regular meeting.

On motion by Allen, seconded by Gatson and unanimously approved to approve the payables from September, 2022.

On motion by Allen, seconded by Gatson and unanimously approved to accept the monthly revenue and expenditure report for August as presented.

On motion by Allen, seconded by Hill and unanimously approved to adopt Ordinance No 05-22 pertaining to Smoke Free Community.

TOWN OF FARMERVILLE ORDINANCE NO 05-22

Louisiana Local Model Ordinance Prohibiting Smoking in all Workplaces and Public Places

Sec. 1000. Title

This Article shall be known as the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana**, Smoke-free Air Ordinance of 2022.

Sec. 1001. Intent

Accordingly, the **Town of Farmerville, Louisiana**, finds and declares that the purposes of this ordinance are (1) to protect the public health and welfare by prohibiting smoking in public places and places of employment; and (2) to guarantee the right of nonsmokers to breathe smoke-free air, and to recognize that the need to breathe smoke-free air shall have priority over the desire to smoke.

Sec. 1002. Definitions

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this Article, shall be construed as defined in this Section:

A. "Bar" means an establishment that is devoted to the serving of alcoholic beverages for

consumption by guests on the premises and in which the serving of food is only incidental to the consumption of those beverages, including but not limited to, taverns, nightclubs, cocktail lounges, and cabarets.

- B. "Business" means a sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other business entity, either for-profit or not-for-profit, including retail establishments where goods or services are sold; professional corporations and other entities where legal, medical, dental, engineering, architectural, or other professional services are delivered; and private clubs.
- C. "E cigarette" means any electronic oral device, such as one composed of a heating element, battery, and/or electronic circuit, which provides a vapor of nicotine or any other substances, and the use or inhalation of which simulates smoking. The term shall include any such device, whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold as an e-cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, or under any other product name or descriptor. "Employee" means a person who is employed by an employer in consideration for direct or indirect monetary wages or profit, and a person who volunteers his or her services for a non-profit entity.
- D. "Enclosed Area" means all space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded on at least two sides by walls, doorways, or windows, whether open or closed. A wall includes any retractable divider, garage door, or other physical barrier, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not containing openings of any kind.
- E. "Health Care Facility" means an office or institution providing care or treatment of diseases, whether physical, mental, or emotional, or other medical, physiological, or psychological conditions, including but not limited to, hospitals, rehabilitation hospitals or other clinics, including weight control clinics, nursing homes, long-term care facilities, homes for the aging or chronically ill, laboratories, and offices of surgeons, chiropractors, physical therapists, physicians, psychiatrists, dentists, and all specialists within these professions. This definition shall include all waiting rooms, hallways, private rooms, semiprivate rooms, and wards within health care facilities.
- F. "Place of Employment" means an area under the control of a public or private employer, including, but not limited to, work areas, private offices, employee lounges, restrooms, conference rooms, meeting rooms, classrooms, employee cafeterias, hallways, construction sites, temporary offices, and vehicles. A private residence is not a "place of employment" unless it is used as a child care, adult day care, or health care facility.
- G. "Playground" means any park or recreational area designed in part to be used by children that has play or sports equipment installed or that has been designated or landscaped for play or sports activities, or any similar facility located on public or private school grounds or on City grounds.
- H. "Public Place" means an area to which the public is invited or in which the public is permitted, including but not limited to, banks, bars, educational facilities, gaming facilities, health care facilities, hotels and motels, laundromats, public transportation vehicles and facilities, reception areas, restaurants, retail food production and marketing establishments, retail service establishments, retail stores, shopping malls, sports arenas, theaters, and waiting rooms. A private residence is not a "public place" unless it is used as a child care, adult day care, or health care facility.
- I. "Restaurant" means an eating establishment, including but not limited to, coffee shops, cafeterias, sandwich stands, and private and public school cafeterias, which gives or offers for sale food to the public, guests, or employees, as well as kitchens and catering facilities in which food is prepared on the premises for serving elsewhere. The term "restaurant" shall include a bar area within the restaurant.
- J. "Retail Tobacco Business" is any establishment or business, including but not limited to cigar shops, that are utilized primarily for the sale of tobacco products and accessories and in which the sale of other items is incidental.
- K. "Service Line" means an indoor or outdoor line in which one (1) or more persons are waiting for or receiving service of any kind, whether or not the service involves the exchange of money, including but not limited to, ATM lines, concert lines, food vendor lines, movie ticket lines, and sporting event lines.

L. "Shopping Mall" means an enclosed public walkway or hall area that serves to connect retail or professional establishments.

M. "Smoking" means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar, cigarette, or pipe, or any other lighted or heated tobacco or plant product intended for inhalation, in any manner or in any form. "Smoking" also includes the use of an e- cigarette which creates a vapor, in any manner or in any form, or the use of any oral smoking device for the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking in this Article.

N. "Sports Arena" means a place where people assemble to engage in physical exercise, participate in athletic competition, or witness sports or other events, including sports pavilions, stadiums, gymnasiums, health spas, boxing arenas, swimming pools, roller and ice rinks, and bowling alleys.

Sec. 1003. Application of Article to Town of Farmerville, Louisiana-Owned Facilities and Property

All enclosed areas, including buildings and vehicles owned, leased, or operated by the **Town** as well as all outdoor property adjacent to such buildings and under the control of the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana**, shall be subject to the provisions of this Article.

Sec. 1004. Prohibition of Smoking in Enclosed Public Places

Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed public places within the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana**, including but not limited to, the following places:

A. Aquariums, galleries, libraries, and museums.

B. Areas available to the general public in businesses and non-profit entities patronized by the public, including but not limited to, banks, laundromats, professional offices, and retail service establishments.

- C. Bars.
- D. Bingo facilities.
- E. Child care and adult day care facilities.
- F. Convention facilities.
- G. Educational facilities, both public and private.
- H. Elevators.
- I. Gaming facilities.
- J. Health care facilities.

K. Hotels and motels: including all rooms rented to guests, restrooms, lobbies, reception areas, hallways, and other commonuse areas; provided that a maximum of fifty percent of the hotel rooms, at the discretion of the hotel owner or general manger, available for rent to guests in a hotel or motel may be designated as smoking rooms as provided by the Louisiana Smoke-Free Air Act, Act 815.

L. Lobbies, hallways, and other common areas in apartment buildings, condominiums, trailer parks, and other multiple-unit residential facilities.

M. Nursing homes: common-use, public areas. To remain consistent with the Louisiana Smoke-Free Air Act, Act 815, smoking is allowed in private and semiprivate rooms or apartments in assisted living residences, and other long-term care facilities that are occupied by one or more persons, who are all smokers and who have requested in writing to be placed in a room where smoking is permitted; provided that smoke from such rooms or apartments does not infiltrate into areas where smoking is prohibited.

N. Polling places.

- O. Public transportation vehicles, including buses and taxicabs, under the authority of the **Town of Farmerville, Louisiana**, and ticket, boarding, and waiting areas of public transportation facilities, including bus, train, and airport facilities.
- P. Restaurants.
- Q. Restrooms, lobbies, reception areas, hallways, and other common-use areas.
- R. Retail stores.
- S. Retail tobacco business, including cigar shops.
- T. Rooms, chambers, places of meeting or public assembly, including school buildings, under the control of an agency, board, commission, committee or council of the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana**, or a political subdivision of the State, to the extent the place is subject to the jurisdiction of the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana**.
- U. Service lines.
- V. Shopping malls.
- W. Sports arenas, including enclosed places in outdoor arenas.
- X. Theaters and other facilities primarily used for exhibiting motion pictures, stage dramas, lectures, musical recitals, or other similar performances.

Sec. 1005. Prohibition of Smoking in Enclosed Places of Employment

A. Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed areas of places of employment without exception. This includes, without limitation, common work areas, auditoriums, classrooms, conference and meeting rooms, private offices, elevators, hallways, medical facilities, cafeterias, employee lounges, stairs, restrooms, vehicles, and all other enclosed facilities.

B. This prohibition on smoking shall be communicated to all existing employees by the effective date of this Article and to all prospective employees upon their application for employment.

Sec. 1006. Prohibition of Smoking in Outdoor Public Places

Smoking shall be prohibited in the following outdoor places:

A. Within a reasonable distance of 20 feet outside entrances, operable windows, and ventilation systems of enclosed areas where smoking is prohibited, so as to prevent tobacco smoke from entering those areas.

B. On all outdoor property that is adjacent to buildings owned, leased, or operated by the **Town of Farmerville, Louisiana**, and that is under the control of the **Town of Farmerville, Louisiana**.

C. In, and within 20 feet of, outdoor seating or serving areas of restaurants and bars.

D. In all outdoor arenas, stadiums, and amphitheaters. Smoking shall also be prohibited in, and within 20 feet of, bleachers and grandstands for use by spectators at sporting and other public events.

E. In, and within 20 feet of, all outdoor playgrounds.

F. In, and within 20 feet of, all outdoor public transportation stations, platforms, and shelters under the authority of the Town of Farmerville.

G. In all outdoor service lines, including lines in which service is obtained by persons in vehicles, such as service that is provided by bank tellers, parking lot attendants, and toll takers. In lines in which service is obtained by persons in vehicles, smoking is prohibited by both pedestrians and persons in vehicles, but only within 20 feet of the point of service.

H. In outdoor common areas of apartment buildings, condominiums, trailer parks, retirement facilities, nursing homes, and other multiple-unit residential facilities, except in designated smoking areas, not to exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total outdoor common area, which must be located at least 20 feet outside entrances, operable windows, and ventilation systems of enclosed areas where smoking is prohibited.

Sec. 1007. Prohibition of Smoking in Outdoor Places of Employment

A. Smoking shall be prohibited in all outdoor places of employment where two or more employees are required to be in the course of their employment. This includes, without limitation, work areas, construction sites, temporary offices such as trailers, restroom facilities, and vehicles.

B. This prohibition on smoking shall be communicated to all existing employees by the effective date of this Article and to all prospective employees upon their application for employment.

Sec. 1008. Where Smoking Not Regulated

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article to the contrary, smoking shall not be prohibited in private residences, unless used as a childcare, adult day care, or health care facility.

Sec. 1009. Declaration of Establishment or Outdoor Area as Nonsmoking

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, an owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of an establishment, facility, or outdoor area may declare that entire establishment, facility, or outdoor area as a nonsmoking place. Smoking shall be prohibited in any place in which a sign conforming to the requirements of Section 1012(A) is posted.

Sec. 1010. Posting of Signs and Removal of Ashtrays

The owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place or place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this Article shall:

A. Clearly and conspicuously post "No Smoking" signs or the international "No Smoking" symbol (consisting of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette enclosed in a red circle with a red bar across it) in that place.

B. Clearly and conspicuously post at every entrance to that place a sign stating that smoking is prohibited.

C. Clearly and conspicuously post on every vehicle that constitutes a place of employment under this Article at least one sign, visible from the exterior of the vehicle, stating that smoking is prohibited.

D. Remove all ashtrays from any area where smoking is prohibited by this Article, except for ashtrays displayed for sale and not for use on the premises.

Sec. 1011. Nonretaliation; Nonwaiver of Rights

A. No person or employer shall discharge, refuse to hire, or in any manner retaliate against an employee, applicant for employment, customer, or resident of a multiple-unit residential facility because that employee, applicant, customer, or resident exercises any rights afforded by this Article or reports or attempts to prosecute a violation of this Article. Notwithstanding Section 1015, violation of this Subsection shall be a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine not to exceed \$1000 for each violation.

B. An employee who works in a setting where an employer allows smoking does not waive or otherwise surrender any legal rights the employee may have against the employer or any other party.

Sec. 1012. Enforcement

- A. This Article shall be enforced by the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana**, Law Enforcement or an authorized designee.
- B. Notice of the provisions of this Article shall be given to all applicants for a business license in the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana**.
- C. Any citizen who desires to register a complaint under this Article may initiate enforcement with the **Town of Farmerville**, **Louisiana** Law Enforcement.
- D. Town Code Enforcement officials may enforce this ordinance while an establishment is undergoing otherwise mandated inspections.
- E. An owner, manager, operator, or employee of an area regulated by this Article shall direct a person who is smoking in violation of this Article to extinguish the product being smoked. If the person does not stop smoking, the owner, manager, operator, or employee shall refuse service and shall immediately ask the person to leave the premises. If the person in violation refuses to leave the premises, the owner, manager, operator, or employee shall contact a law enforcement agency.
- F. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, an employee or private citizen may register a non-emergency complaint to law enforcement.

Sec. 1013. Violations and Penalties

- A. A person who smokes in an area where smoking is prohibited by the provisions of this Article shall be guilty of -a misdemeanor, punishable by: 1. A fine not exceeding one hundred dollars (\$100) for a first violation. 2. A fine not exceeding two hundred fifty dollars (\$250) for a second violation within one (1) year. 3. A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars (\$500) for each additional violation within one year.
- B. Except as otherwise provided by this Section, a person who owns, manages, operates, or otherwise controls a public place or place of employment and who fails to comply with the provisions of this Section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by: 1. A fine not exceeding one hundred dollars (\$100) for a first violation. 2. A fine not exceeding two hundred fifty dollars (\$250) for a second violation within one (1) year. 3. A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars (\$500) for each additional violation within one (1) year.
- C. In addition to the fines established by this Ordinance, violation of this Section by a person who owns, manages, operates, or otherwise controls a public place or place of employment may result in the suspension or revocation of any permit or license issued to the person for the premises on which the violation occurred.
- D. Each day on which a violation of this Section occurs shall be considered a separate and distinct violation.

Sec. 1014. Public Education

The **Town of Farmerville, Louisiana**, shall engage in a continuing program to explain and clarify the purposes and requirements of this Article to citizens affected by it, and to guide owners, operators, and managers in their compliance with it. The program may include publication of a brochure for affected businesses and individuals explaining the provisions of this ordinance.

Sec. 1015. Governmental Agency Cooperation

The **Town of Farmerville, Louisiana**, shall annually request other governmental and educational agencies having facilities within the **Town of Farmerville, Louisiana**, to establish local operating procedures in cooperation and compliance with this Article. This includes urging all Federal, State, Parish, and School District agencies to update their existing smoking control regulations to be consistent with the current health findings regarding secondhand smoke.

Sec. 1016. Other Applicable Laws

This Article shall not be interpreted or construed to permit smoking where it is otherwise restricted by other applicable laws.

Sec. 1017. Liberal Construction

This Article shall be liberally construed so as to further its purposes.

Sec. 1018. Severability

If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Article or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Article which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Article are declared to be severable.

Sec. 1019. Effective Date

This Article shall be effective (recommended thirty (30) days) from and after the date of its adoption.

AYES: ALLEN, NATION, JOHNINKIN, GATSON, HILL

NAYS: NONE ABSTAIN: NONE ABSENT: NONE

ATTEST: JOHN CROW, MAYOR

GAY NELL PEPPER, TOWN CLERK

On motion by Gatson, seconded by Allen and unanimously approved to adopt Ordinance No 06-22 declaring surplus property and providing for the disposal thereof.

ORDINANCE No 06-22

AN ORDINANCE DELARING MOVABLE PROPERTY AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION BY PULIC SALE, DONATION, OR DESTRUCTION **WHEREAS**, La R.S. 33:4712 authorizes municipalities to sell property owned by municipalities and declare property as surplus property, and

WHEREAS, the TOWN OF FARMERVILLE has a number of items of movable property which it has replaced with new items and are no longer useful to the Town of Farmerville, therefore.

BE IT ORDAINED, that the TOWN OF FARMERVILLE, hereby declares that the following movables be declared surplus property and does hereby authorize the advertising of said items for sale at a public auction, to be held at the Town of Farmerville Community Center, located at 407 S. Main, Farmerville, Louisiana, on Wednesday, November 2, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. and said property be sold for not less than the minimum bid listed, to-wit:

Vehicle No.	<u>Description</u>	Minimum Bid	Serial/VIN No.
12	1990 Ford CB	\$ 1,000.00	2FDLF47M1LCB18997
131	2007 Ford E250 Van	\$ 2,000.00	1FTNE24W67DA90372
2	2008 Chev Tahoe	\$ 200.00	1GNEC03048R248579
35	2001 Ford Pickup	\$ 200.00	1FTRF17W61NA82231
70	1998 Heil C8500 Garbage	\$ 500.00	1GBP7H1C7WJ112089
87	2012 Chev Tahoe \$ 1,0	00.00 10	GNLC2E08CR159476
88	2002 Ford F-550 Truck	\$ 500.00	1FADF57F82EB11164
95	2006 Chev Silverado 1500I	LT \$300.00	1GCEC14Z66Z287375
100	2014 Chevy Caprice	\$ 500.00	6G3NS5U2XEL976434
107	2007 Ford Van	\$ 500.00	1FBNE31L67DA40043
E33	1981 Tran UT(Lowboy	ý) \$5,000.00	1B9W45301B1013156
Ingersoll R	and 3 Phase Air Compressor	\$ 500.00	CBV 34700

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that if any provision or item of this Ordinance or the application thereof is held invalid, such invalidity shall not effect other provisions, items or applications of the Ordinance which can be given affect without the invalid provisions, items or applications and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared severable.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that all Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Introduced the 12th day of September, 2022.

After reading of the above, section by section, the vote was as follows, to-wit:

YEAS: ALLEN, NATION, GATSON, JOHNIKIN, HILL

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

This Ordinance was declared adopted on this the 10th day of October, 2022.

Gay Nell Pepper, Town Clerk

John Crow, Mayor

On motion by Hill, seconded by Johnikin and unanimously approved to adopt Resolution No 20-22 pertaining to CWEF Grant.

RESOLUTION 20-22

WHEREAS, the Town of Farmerville operates a water system for the benefit of the citizens who live here, and;

WHEREAS, the Town of Farmerville wishes to have all of the water customers to pay an amount that is fair for the amount of water used while minimizing hazards to our employees, and;

WHEREAS, the Town of Farmerville is continuing its' effort to replace inactive and inaccurate water meters with new meters and updating meters to allow drive-by and/or remote reading of meters so that all customers will share proportionately, the costs of operating the Town's water system while reducing our employees' exposure to traffic and other roadside hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Farmerville, request that the Office of Community Development consider funding the project to continue to improve the water system by providing funds to make needed repairs.

Passed and adopted by the Town of Farmerville, State of Louisiana, on the 10th day of October, 2022.

On motion by Gatson, seconded by Hill and unanimously approved to adopt Resolution No 21-22 pertaining to LCDBG process.

PROCUREMENT POLICY
RESOLUTION NO 21-22
BY THE

Town of Farmerville

WHEREAS, the Town of Farmerville has been afforded the opportunity to apply and participate in the State of Louisiana 2023 Community Development Block Grant Program administered by the Division of Administration; and,

WHEREAS, the STATE requires the establishment of uniform procedures in compliance with OMB Circular A-102;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town of Farmerville, that the attached policy entitled "Procurement Procedures Relative to the LCDBG Program" is hereby adopted.

Passed, approved and adopted this 10th day of October, 2022.

On motion by Allen, seconded by Gatson and unanimously approved to adopt Resolution No 22-22 pertaining to Citizen Participation Policy for LCDBG process.

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN RESOLUTION NO 22-22 BY THE Town of Farmerville

WHEREAS, the Town of Farmerville has been afforded the opportunity to apply and participate in the State of Louisiana 2023 Community Development Block Grant Program administered by the Division of Administration; and,

WHEREAS, the STATE requires Grantees to establish procedures to ensure adequate citizen participation with the program;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town of Farmerville, that the attached policy entitled "Citizen Participation Plan", dated October 10, 2022 is hereby adopted.

Passed, approved and adopted by the Town of Farmerville, Parish of Union , State of Louisiana on this the $\underline{10^{th}}$ day of $\underline{October}$, 2022.

On motion by Hill, seconded by Allen and unanimously approved to adopt Resolution No 23-22 pertaining to paying for Engineering and Administrative for LCDBG.

RESOLUTION NO. 23-22

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUMMITAL OF FY 2023 LOUISIANA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT APPLICATION, AND ENTERING INTO AGREEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH ADMINISTRATION AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Town of Farmerville ("Town") desires to submit a fiscal year 2023 Louisiana Community Development Block Grant ("LCDBG") Public Facilities application (the "Application"); and, WHEREAS, the Town intends to use local funds to pay for all administrative costs, including Application preparation, administrative consultant fees, and any other administrative costs incurred by the Town associated with the Application; and,

WHEREAS, the Town intends to use local funds to pay for all engineering costs, including Application preparation, basic engineering design, surveying, permitting, project representation, and construction phase services incurred by the Town associated with the Application; and,

WHEREAS, the Town desires to enter into an agreement with Frye Magee, LLC, to perform all administrative consulting services associated with the Application, which includes assistance with developing the Application and performing all LCDBG administrative consulting duties following a grant award; and,

WHEREAS, the Town desires to enter into an agreement with Meyer, Meyer, LaCroix & Hixson Inc. to perform all engineering consulting services associates with the Application, which includes assistance with developing the Application and performing all necessary engineering consulting services following a grant award.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF FARMERVILLE, LOUISIANA:

- 1 The Town enters into an agreement with Frye Magee, LLC to develop the Application, and perform all LCDBG administrative consulting duties following a grant award.
- 2 The Town enters into an agreement with Meyer, Meyer, LaCroix & Hixson Inc. to assist with the development of the Application and perform all necessary engineering consulting services following a grant award.
- 3 The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the respective agreements with Frye Magee, LLC and Meyer, Meyer, LaCroix & Hixson Inc.
- 4 The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute and submit the Application, as well as all related documents, and to do any and all things necessary and proper to carry out this Resolution and to fulfill its objectives and purposes.
- 5 This Resolution shall become effective upon final adoption and signature of the Mayor.

Said Resolution having been read and considered by a quorum of the Town Council, a record vote was taken and the following result was had:

YEA: ALLEN, NATION, GATSON, JOHNIKIN, HILL

NAY: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

WHEREUPON, the presiding officer declared the above Resolution duly adopted in full on this <u>10th</u> day of October, 2022.

There being no further business to come before the council Mayor Crow adjourned this meeting the 10th day of October, 2022. Upon motion by Gatson, seconded by Hill and unanimously approved.

Gay Nell Pepper, Town Clerk John Crow, Mayor